
, Clara Taylor. 
Frances Groove r. 

Ralph F . Lehman. 

regg Wilson. 

i. 1 !lO!i, Luelle lllat-

H, Dr. Korman W. 

>od. 

,mith and (2) Mary 

4. 

12, Sarah Seals , b. 

1, Susan Ann Eliza-

m. 1877, lllary lllil-

urry. 
: J en kins. 

ilo!' Judd . 
c Wt:hh. 
D. 

· 877, !llary lllildred 

Unl\·ers ity, Auhurn, 
he University. Late r 
eceived hi s doctor's 
n 1911 w as n aml•ll 
• lied in Li ttle Hock . 
. nd H ist0ry Depart­
arr ied J oyce Adkin-

i ~ t Chu rch of L a ke 
Baptis t Convent ion 

ltatc Baptis t Sch ool, 
·n Theologica l Semi-

oe Judd. 
died und e: r th e best 
Is Atlanta. Geoq;iu, 
a m" th ere. 

F or refe rence-see Nationa l Society D. A . R., No. 302044 
Thelma H er ndon, Holman (Mrs. N. W.) 

H erndon data 'com piled by Mrs. Harry H erndon, (Bru nswick, Ga. ) 

HIGGINBOTHAM 

(Note : Numbers r epresent generations, a s: ( 1 ) f irst generation, ( 2) 
second generation , ( 3) third generation, etc.) 

1-John H igginbotham , m. Frances Riley. 
2-Mose Higginbotham, m . (?). 
3-Joseph Higginbotham, b. 1790 In A mherst County, Virgi nia . 
3-Robe rt H igginbotham, d . 1826. 
3-Willlam Higginbotham, d. 183 2; m. Mary Shannon . 
3-Huchel Higgi u both am. 
3- Cha rles Higginbotham. 
3-Frances Higgin botham, m. J oseph Higginbotham. 
2-John Higginbotham, n. S., m. 1767, Rachel Banks, da u ghter 

o r Gerra rd Banks and Ann Staunton. 
3-Thomas Higginbotham, b. 1769 , d. 1835. 
3-James Higginbotham, b. 1770, d. 1835. 
3-John H igginbotham, b. 17 22 , d . 1822; m. Margaret Cahill. 
3-Ann Staunton Hi gginbotham, b. 1773; m. John Higginbotham . 
3-David Higginbotham, b. 1774. 
3-May H iggin botham. b. 17i7. 
3-Jesse Higginbotham, b. 1779. 
3-Daniel Higginboth am, b. 178 1. 
3-Tirzah H igginbotham, d. 184 1. 
3-Franc·es Riley lllgginbotham. b. 1785. 
3-Eusene lllgg!nbotham, b. 1787. 
3-Re uben Hlgginhotham , b . 1789. 
2-Aaron Higginbotham, b. 1785, m. Clara Green. 
3- Colonel Samuel Higgin botham, R. S., m. Jan e S atterwhite, 

dau ghter or John Satterwhite . 
4-John Higginbotham, m. Ann Staunton Higginbotham. 
4-J oseph H iggin bo th am. 
4-Viletta Higginbotham. 
4-Daughte r J-ligglnlJo tham, rn . Steph en Cheatham. 
4-George Green Higginbotham. • 
4-Bleck ley Higginbotham . 
4-Dau g!Jter Higginbotham, m. Wflliam Fortson . 
4-Aaron Higginbotham. 
2-Jamcs Hlggin·bot ham, n. S., d. 1813; m. 1 779 , Rachel Camp-

bel l. 
2-Ann Higginbotham. _ 
2-Benjami n Higginbotham, d. 1 800 ; m. Elizabeth Reid: - ~ 
2-Joseph Higginbotham. 
2-Rachel Hlgglnbotbum, ti. 17 61; rn. William Morrison. 
2-T homas Higginbotham . In 1776, a ccording to the William and 

Mary Quarterly, the wife of Thomas Hi gg inbotham and ten or 
his ch ildren were living. 
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1. 
2. 
3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

20. 

21. 
22. 

DESCENT FROM THE EMPEROR CHARLEMAGNE 

Emperor Charlemagne and Hildegard. 
Emperor Louis I and 2nd Judith of Bavaria.· 
Lady Adelheid> m. Robert Fortis, Count of Anjou, Blois, 
d. 866. 
Robert I, King of France, d. 923, m. Beatrice of 
Vermandois. 
Hugh the Great (Hugh Magnus), Duke and Marquis of 
France, d. 956, m. Hedwig of Henry I, German King. 
Hugh Capet, King of France, d. 996, m. Adelaide of 
William, Duke of Acquitaine. . 
Robert II, King of France, d. 1031, m. 3rd, Constance of 
William, Count of Blois, d. 1034. , · 
Robert the Old, Duke of Burgundy, d. 107 5, m.· Eleanor of 
Seomur en Auxois. 
Aldegrade of Burgundy, m. 3rd William VI, Count of Pon­
thieu, d. 1086. 
William VII, Duke of Aquitaine, d. 1127, Maud of Tou­
louse of William IV of Toulouse. 
William VIII, ·Duke of Aquitaine, d. 1137, m. 1st Eleanor 
of Chastellerault of Almeric I. 
Eleanor of Aquitaine, 1123-1204, m. 2nd 1152, Henry .II, 
King of England, d. 1189. 
Eleanor of Englaqd, d. 1204, m. 1169, Alfonso VIII, King 
of Castile, d. 1214. 
Berengaria of Castile, d. 1244, m. 2nd Alfonzo IX, King 
of Leon, d. 1229. 
Fernando III the Saint, K. of Castile and Leon, d. 1253, 
m. 2nd 1237, Joan de Dammartin, d. 1279. 
Eleanor of Castile, d. 1290, m. 1254, Edward I, King of 
England, 1239-1307. 
Joan Plantagenet of Acre, 1272-1307, m. 1290, Sir Gil­
bert de Clare, Kt., 1243-1299, Earl of Clare and 
Hereford. 
Margaret de Clare, 1292-1342, m. 2nd 1317, Hugh de 
Audley, d. 1347, Lord Audley, 8th Earl of Gloucester. 
Margaret de Audley, only daughter, d. 1349, m. ca. 1336, 
Sir Ralph de Stafford, K.G. Earl of Stafford. At Crecy. 
Catherine de Stafford, m. ca. 1361, as his 1st John de 
Sutton, Lord Dudley, of John Sutton II, Lord Dudley of 
Dudley Castle, Stafford. 
Sir John Sutton IV, Baron Dudley of Dudley Castle. 
Sir John Sutton V, Baron Dudley of Dudley Castle, 
1379-1407, m. Constance Blount, d. 1432, of Sir Walter 
Blount of Barton. 
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24. 

25. 

26. 

27. 

28. 

29. 

30. 

31. 

32. 

33. 

34. 

Sir John Sutton VI, K.G., 1400-1487, Baron Dudley, Lord 
Lieutenant of Ireland, 1428, M.P. m. after 1422, Eliza­
beth Berkley of Sir John of Beverstone. 
Sir Edmund Sutton, Lord Dudley, d. after 1483 - before 
1487, m. 2nd Mathilda Clifford, of Thomas, 8th Lord 
Clifford. 
Thomas Sutton, d. 1530, m. Grace Threkeld, daughter of 
Launcelot Threkeld, Esq., of Yeanwith. 
Richard Sutton of Yeanwith assumed name of Dudley, 
d. 1593, m. Dorothy Sanford of Edward Sanford of Asham. 
John Dudley, New-Castle-on-Tyne, m. Bridget Carre of 
William Carre. 
Sir Robert Dudley, Kt., Mayor of Newcastle, Kt., m. 
Anne Wood of Christopher Wood. 
Robert Dudley of Bristol, m. (sister of Edward and 
Robert Green). 
Edward Dudley of Bristol, d. 1655, to Virginia ca. 1637, 
m. Elizabeth Pritchard, d. 1691, daughter of Mrs. Hester 
Pritchard, Bristol. 
Colonel Richard Dudley of Gloucester Co., Virginia, 
d. ca. 1687, m. Mary Sewell (Seawell). 
Richard Dudley, 2nd son, m. Elizabeth Stephens of John 
Stephens. 
Richard Dudley of South Farnham, Essex Co., Virginia, 
Will 1716, m. Elizabeth. 

7 

35. 

Dorothy Dudley, ca. 1695-1751, m. ca. August 12, 1714, 
Henry Gatewood, 1692-1777, son of John Gatewood, 
Immigrant. 
Larkin Gatewood, ca. 1730/35, d. 1805, Elbert Co., 
Georgia, m. ca. 1755, Catherine Penn of Spotsylvania Co., 
Virginia of Joseph and Mary Taylor Penn. 

See The Complete Peerage, by G. E. Cokayne, Volumes 1,4,5-­
The Barons of Dudley, by H. S. Grazebrook--William Salt 
Archaeological Society, Volume 9--Burke's Peerage--Adlard-­
Virginia Colonial Abstracts, Volumes 22,23, and 25--Tyler's 
Quarterlyy·Volume 15, page 176. _,,. 

,. 36. _Mary Gatewood, b. ca. 1760, Amherst Co., Virginia, d. 
, .. \_ before. 1809, m. 1-21-1782, Benjamin Higginbotham in 

Amherst Co., Virginia, son of Benjamin Higginbotham and 
Elizabeth Graves, b. ca. 1762, Amherst Co., Virginia. 
Will dates 5-20-1809, Elbert Co., Georgia, probated 
9-3-1810. . 

37. Benjamin Graves Higginbotham, b. 2-17-1788, elbert Co., 
Georgia, d. 4-23-1862, Noxubee Co., Mississippi, m. 
1-2-1812, Elbert Co., Georgia, Mary Foster Lawless, 
b. 11-24-1795, Elbert Co., Georgia, d. 1874/77, Noxubee 
Co., Miss., daughter of John and Tabitha Rowzey Lawless. 

38. James Larkin Higginbotha~, b. 10-10-1828, Alabama~ d. 
5-31-1913, Noxube~ Co., Miss., m. 5-19-1850, Noxubee 
Co., ·Miss., Mangarett Elizabeth Thomas, b. 5-14-1829, 
Georgia, d. 10-21-1898, Noxubee Co., Miss., daughter of 
Isaac and Elizabeth Thomas • 

. . • 
.·,. . 

.• 
',t ••. ;\: ·_1·; 



39. 

40. 

41. 

42. 

. . 

8 

George Washington Higginbotham, b. 2-9-1861, Noxubee 
Co., Miss., d. 6-30-1937, Clay Co., Miss., m. 12-13-1884, 
Noxubee Co., Miss., Louise Caroline Morris, b. 5-30-1866, 
Noxubee Co., Miss., d. 7-19-50, Clay Co., Miss., daughter 
of Sion Marion Morris and Emily Beavers. 
James Marion Higginbotham, b. 10-19-1889, Winston Co., 
Miss., d. 3-14-1965, Los Angeles, California, m. 
5-23-1909, Clay Co., Miss., Georgia Anna Daves, 
b. 8-19-1888, Choctaw Co., Miss., d. 9-23-1965, Los 
Angeles, California, daughter of James Emrnaziah Daves 
and Nancy Jane Boyd. 
James Marion Higginbotham, Jr., b. 3-31-1910, Clay Co., 
Miss., m. 6-19-1931, Los Angeles, California, Rachel 
Elizabeth Hollingsworth, b. 12-2-11, Los Angeles, Cali­
fornia, daughter of George Hollingsworth and Florence 
Carolyn Jones. 
Lorene Ann Higginbotham Luper. 
Marilyn Rae Higginbotham Salter. 
James Douglas Higginbotham. 
Christine Lynn Higginbotham Hauser • 

.. · 
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BENJAMIN GRAVES HIGGINBOTHAM 

BENJAMIN GRAVES4·HIGGINBOTHAM. (Benjamin3, Benjamin2, Johnl} 
was the son of Benjamin and Mary (Gatewood) Higginbotham. He 
was born on 17 February 1788 in Wilkes County, Georgia. He 
died on 23 April 1862 in Noxubee County, Mississippi and is 
buried in the Lloyd Cemetery [now known as Butler Cemetery]. 
(Birth date, Graves Bible record. Death date, wife's Pension 
application. Burial place, letter dated 29 July 1944 from 
P. G. Whitehead to Mr. E. A. Limmer of Houston, Texas. The 
Bible record was in possession of P. G. Whitehead in 1944. 
Photo copy of Bible record and letter in my file.) · 

Benjamin Graves Higginbotham was married on 2 January 1812, 
in Elbert County, Georgia, to Mary Foster Lawless, daughter. 
of John and Tabitha (Rowzee) Lawless and granddaughter of_...­
Thomas Lawless. (Marriage date, Elbert County, Georgi_a.·Will 
Book and Mixed records, 1809-1812, page 325 and Bible'record.) 

MARY FOSTER (LAWLESS) HIGGINBOTHAM was born on 24 November 
1795, in Elbert County, Georgia. She died between the years 
1875 and 1877 either in Kemper, Winston or Noxubee Counties, 
Mississippi. She is buried in the Lloyd Cemetery. She was 
listed on the 1870 census for Kemper County, Mississippi but 
not found in the 1880 census for Kemper, Neshoba, Winston or 
Noxubee Counties. (Birth date and burial place same refer­
ence as above.) 

The following items pertaining to Benjamin Graves Higgin• 
botham are found in the Elbert County, Georgia Records and 
in the states of Alabama and Mississippi. 

20 May 1809. 
Benjamin·G. Higginbotham was named as executor in his 

father's will. (Elbert County, Georgia Will Book, 1809-1812, 
pages 94-96.) · 

3 September 1810. 
Received 3 September 1810 of Benjamin G. Higginbotham 

Four dollars and Fifty Cents for fees in the probate of Ben­
jamin Higginbotham's Will. 

A. Pope c.c.o. 
(Will Book, 1809-1812, page 359) 

18 September 1810. 
We whose names are here unto annexed do certify that the 

foregoing Inventory and Appraisement of the Estate of Benja­
min Higginbotham late of the County as shown to and by 
B. Graves Higginbotham Executor. We first having taken an 
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· oath so to do 
0

is just and true given under our hand this 18th 
daj ~£ Septembei 1810.~ 

Ordered to be Recorded 
Elbert County, Georgia 

· A. Pope C.C.O. 
(Elbert County, Georgia 

John Upshaw Junior 
Thomas S. Carter 
Thomas Smith 

Will Book 1809-1812, page 118.) 

7 January 1811. 
Morgan 
Elbert County 

Benjamin G. Higginbotham this day appeared 
in Open Court and being duly sworn that the 
foregoing return of the amount of sales is 
Just and True this 7th day January 1811. 

Ordered to be recorded 
A. Pope C.C.O. 

Benjamin G. Higginbotham 

Recorded the 14th day of January 1811. 
(Will Book 1809-1812, page 122.) 

1812. / 
John S. Higginbotham, guardian for Larkin Higginbotham. 

Returns for 1812 shows note on Benjamin Graves Higginbotham 
and Francis Satterwhite. Benjamin G. Higginbotham, Security. 
{Administrators and Guardians Bonds, Elbert County, Georgia 
Will Book "K", 1812-1816, page 39.) . 

Benjamin Graves Higginbotham's name is on a list of soldiers 
for Georgia Militia for the War of 1812. (Historical Col­
lections of Georgia Chapters National Society Daughters of 
the American Revolution, Volume 3, page 149.) · 

Benjamin Graves Higginbotham was a First Lieutenant in the 
Company Commanded by Captain Charles Carter in the Regiment 
of Volunteers of Georgia Militia commanded by General Floyd 
in the War of 1812. He volunteered at the Elbert County 
Courthouse on the 1st day of August 1813 for the term of six 
months and continued in actual service in the war for the 
term of three months and was then honorably discharged at 
Gamp Hope on the 1st day of November 1813. He was employed 
chiefly in the building of forts. (His petition for bounty 
land and wife's Widow pension application number 11529, both 
found in the National Archives, Washington, D.C.) 

1815. 
Benjamin Graves Higginbotham was listed on an 1815 tax 

list of Elbert County, Georgia. He was in Captain Christian's 
District. (Georgia State Archives.) 

1820. 
He is not found in the Georgia Census for 1820, but 

could have been in one of the counties whose records are 
lost. 

1822-1833. 
The last child born in Georgia was in 1822. The next 
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three ·children were born in Alabama in 1825, 1828 artd lajj~~ 
we know he was living in Green County, Alabama, in 1828 when 
his son, James Larkin was born. (Bible record of Benjamin 
Graves Higginbotham and Bible record of his grandson, Ge9rge 
Washington.Higginbotham.) 

Benjamin Graves Higginbotham was living in Dallas 
County, Alabama, in the year 1830 where he is found listed on 
the census for that County. 

1835. 
About the year 1835, Benjamin Graves Higginbotham and 

his family moved from Alabama to Mississippi where they set­
tled in the hill country in the south west part of Noxubee 
County. This was only a few years after the county had been 
formed from the Choctaw Purchase. I quote from the unpub­
lished History of Noxubee County, Mississippi, by John Ander-.... 
son Tr.son and published in the Macon Beacon in 1926-1927. // 

'Mr. Halbert states that Mr. J. L. Higginbotham, ~ho· had 
lived near the treaty ground since 1835, has repeatedly 
pointed out to him the place described as the spot where the 
treaty of Dancing Rabbit was made and signed, the information 
of Mr. Higginbotham resting upon the statements of two pio­
neer settlers of Noxubee County, both of whom were present 
during the negotiations at Dancing Rabbit and were eye wit­
nesses to the signing of the treaty, Viz; Mr. Hilcar Burwell, 
who was one of the first settlers of Mashulaville, and 
Mr. G. W. Campbell, who died at his residence near Shuqualak 
in 1888. Mr. Higginbotham stated that these two men had fre­
quently pointed the place out to him. Mr. Higginbotham made 
the additional statement that his brother-in-law, Lorenzo 
Thomas, in 1849, built a split log cabin with a chimney to 
the south on the very spot where the treaty was made. This 
cabin has long since disappeared, but, if by close search, 
some traces of the old chimney site could be discovered, it 
will give almost the exact spot of signing the treaty." 
(Chapter on Indians, page 26. History found in the Noxubee 
County Court House and Library, Macon, Mississippi and in the 
Mississippi State Archives, Jackson, Mississippi.) 

1838. 
Benjamin Graves Higginbotham made his home in the Fleet­

wood Mountains, where there was an abundance of springs, 
game and timber supply. It was here his last child was born 
in 1838. 

1840. 
He is listed on the 1840 United States Census for Noxu­

bee County, Mississippi. 

1850. 
On the 1850 census for Noxubee County he gives his occu­

pation as a Planter. His wife, Polly; son John Lawless; 
daughter, Mary Gatewood Higginbotham; and their youngest ••• 
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JAMES LARKIN HIGGINBOTHAM 
·, 

JAMES LA~KINS HIGGINBOTHAM (Benjamin Graves4, Benjamin3, 
Benjamin , Johnl) sixth child of Benjamin Graves and Mary 
"Polly" Foster (Lawless) Higginbotham. He was born on 
10 October 1828, Green County, Alabama. He died on 31 May 
1913, Noxubee Co., Ms. and is buried in the White Cemetery. 
(Son George Washington's Bible, tombstone inscription and 
death certificate.) 

James Larkin Higginbotham was married on 19 May 1850, Nbxu­
bee Co., Ms. to MARGARETT ELIZABETH THOMAS. She was the 
daughter of Isaac and Elizabeth ( ) Thomas. Both 

. ' 

were born in South Carolina. (Noxubee Co. marriage records., 
Book A, page 283.) 

./ 

Margarett Elizabeth (Thomas) Higginbotham was born on 14 May 
1829, Green County, Georgia. She died on. 21 October 1898, 
Noxubee Co., Ms. and is buried beside her husband in the 
White Cemetery. (Bible and tombstone inscription.) 

James Larkin Higginbotham is found living a short· distance 

. .. 

from his father and next to his brother, Benjamin Toliver Higgin­
botham in the 1850 Noxubee Co., Ms. census. His occupation 
is listed as a Planter. 

In the 1860 census for Noxubee County, Larkin's occupation is 
given as a farmer and his place of residence as Mashulaville. 
His wife, Margarett, and four children, Benjamin Wiley, Isaac 
Thomas, Mary Elizabeth and Connnodore Coltttnbus are listed in 
his household. 

The 1870 Noxubee census has him living in Shuqualak, Ms. 
Listed in his household are his wife, Margarett and children, 
Benjamin, Thomas, Elizabeth, Comodore C., George W., Andrew J. 
and Joseph E. Higginbotham. His occupation was a farmer. 

In the 1880 Noxubee census there is just his wife and sons 
George and Joseph listed in his household. His residence is 
given as being in the west half of beat number 4 and his 
occupation a farmer. 

James Larkin Higginbotham lived all his life, except the 
first seven years and the years he was gone during the War 
Between the States, in Noxubee Co., Ms. He was considered 
one of the best marksmen and hunters in that part of the 
country. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON HIGGiNBoTHAM•s LINE 

Alabama, JANET LYNN STANTON, b. 11 November 1949, 
Birmingham Alabama. Her father, JOHN KENNETH 
STANTON b: 8 December 1916, Knoxville, Tennessee; 
d. 17 J~ly 1965, Clanton, Alabama; buried in · 
Elmwood Cemetery, Birmingham, Alabama. Her 
mother, JANIE (HUBBARD) STANTON, b. 14 December 
1919, Birmingham, Alabama. 
CHILDREN: 2 Born in Birmingham, Alabama 
10-1 MICHAEL ARTHUR MATTHEWS b. 22 February 1968 
10-2 TIMOTHY DAVID MATTHEWS b. 23 August 1975 

.·. 

BERTHA GERTRUDE (HIGGINBOTHAM) MATTHEWS m. (second) 3 
September 1926, Santa Ana, California, JOHN MICHIEAL ~ILCOURSE, 
b. 1880, Chester, Pennsylvania; d. 28 February 1951, San 
Francisco, California; son of MICHIEAL and BRIDGET (RAGEN) 
KILCOURSE; both born in Ireland. 

7-3 JAMES MARION HIGGINBOTHAM (George Washington6, James Larkins, 
Benjamin Graves4, Benjarnin3, Benjamin2, Johnl) b. 19 Octo­
ber 1889, Winston Co., Ms.; d. 14 March 1965, Lynwood, 
California; buried in Rose Hills Cemetery, Whittier, Cali­
fornia; m. 23 May 1909, West Point, Ms., GEORGIA ANNA 
DAVES, b. 19 August 1888, Choctaw Co., Ms.; d. 23 September 
1965, Huntington Park, California; buried in Rose Hills 
Cemetery. Her father, JAMES EMMAZIAH DAVES, b. 15 June 
1851, Lowndes Co., Ms.; q. 2 February 1934, Alabama City, 
Alabama. Her mother, NANCY JANE (BOYD) DAVES, b. 30 
September 1857, Choctaw Co., Ms.; d. 5 November 1933, 
Alabama City, Alabama; both buried in Forrest Cemetery, 
Gadsden, Alabama. 
CHILDREN: 5 
8-1 JAMES MARION HIGGINBOTHAM, JR. b. 31 March 1910, West 

Point, Ms.; m. 19 June 1931, Los Angeles, California, 
RACHEL ELIZABETH HOLLINGSWORTH, b. 2 December 1911, 
Los Angeles, California. Her father, GEORGE HOLLINGS­
WORTH, b. 19 June 1888, Los Angeles, California; d. 
17 September 1954, South Gate, California. Her mother, 
FLORENCE CAROLINE (JONES) HOLLINGSWORTH, b. 16 October 
1890, Lawrence, Kansas; d. 4 October 1959, Huntington 
Park, California; both buried in Inglewood Park Cemetery, 
Inglewood, California. 
CHILDREN: 4 
9-1 LORENE ANN HIGGINBOTHAM b. 10 June 1932, Maywood, 

California; m. 17 February 1956, Huntington Park, 
California, ARTHUR CECIL LUPER, JR., b. 20 February 
1931, Fort Smith, Arkansas. His father, ARTHUR 
CEqIL•LUPER, SR., b. 22 March 1906, Winslow, 
Arkansas. His mother, MARIE ELIZABETH (KUNZ) 
LUPER, b. 8 May 1909, Fort Smith, Arkansas. 
CHILDREN: 2 
10-1 KARIA JEAN LUPER b. 26 June 1958, Lynwood, 
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HIGGI NBOTHAM 

KEl-i'I .. UCKY LA:JD OFFICE WAF.RANT No . 2131 is granted by the Commonweal th 
to JOE~ : MGUi\TS assignee of ELI COFFEY, a tract of land c ontaining 50 
acres by survey , bearing d~te 10 Sept 1818, lying and b e ing in the 
c ou..11tys of Wayne and Pulaski Co, beginning on the North side of Rock 
Cr e ek at a l arbe chesnut ar:d marked ''JD". 

----------------------------

I 
t 
i 

I 
l 
i J\noH e,ll men by these presents that we, ANDREH HIGGINBOTI-Ll\111 & MOSES 

HIGGE rna n -rn;.1 are bound U..'1to THGr.lPSON SLOAN, ROBE?.T HUTCHIS OTJ, WILLIAi1! 
DliHCAH , & JE:REi·1IAH l~OR?.CH :i n the sum o.f $3 . 00 , dated this 12 Nov 1825 
1•)he:reas , Andrevr has ob tained a!'l appeal in favor or. the above Thompson, 
Robert , i·:illia;n and Jere!niah for the sum of $1. 25 . = 

~ 
. 

f:.. Surn.'::on:; for HEiIBY Si·iALL_, STEPHEN 
O\·Jt.NS , JO!iN DECKER AND J OSEPH BAKER 
to a ppear and spea.l~ the truth in 
b ehalf of Andrew Hi r,g i nb otham in an 
a ppeal nm.r pending against 'Thompson, 
(Delivered to all b u t CA·~ens by order 

/: .· ' , ·? . 
O.t :o?c-Av»<'.:.,, · _,,14 Cf~iv}-~~ I 

->tj. JI ' 
' ~,.(, . 1 ·', ,.£·) :.=- .~1:r.· ~~, ~ I /) _ ~/, ; ! 
} f,, 

,.._ .- "/ -:Y ' / ~-! (la'.• • . ;-, . 
- · J ·~ .' / ·' i '../ . ./ . 

Sloa.11 and ot hers , this 3 April 1825. 
of A. Higginb othrun . 

fa_ Surrt'":1ons for JO~ii DECKER, J OSEPH BAKER, W~LLIAH HOLi·iS , SPXUEL GOODING, 
HFT RY S!·i.l\LL & S7 :.:!:PH:2i1 CkTLIW to spea1-:: in behalf of A. Higginbotham this 
29 Jur:.S: 1826 ••• Ex ee:ute d on alJ. but Oi-1ens . 

A Su_>;,r:10ns f or WILLI A!·; SVif\LL, TH CMJ-.S DODSON &:, MATHEW M0RR OH to spea.~ in 
b ehalf of Filliam Dur.can & otl1e rs this 6 July 1826 ••• Executed on e.11 but 
Fillia::i Small ••• Also Tbo1r,p s on Sloa n has not been found • 

• A. Du..1~1ons for NICE OLAS HERCER to s peak in b ehalf of Andrew Higginbotham 
thi s 25 Oct 1826 . 

'Ih~ b a l anc e of this Su i t wa s n ot included with the obove .Ru.111.mons . 
================ 

ANDREW HIGGINi30THP.!vi vs EViAIWEL llIGGINBOTHAi-1 - fi lC;d July Term, 1824 -
Andre1-.1 states t h a t h e borro;-,e d fr om a certain THOi,J.A.S KEHHEDY the sum of 
$100 and t )1a t Emanue l Hie;ginb otham became Security for me to Kennedy; 
that shortly therea:'ter,, I de p osited with Emanuel 110 pounds of Gun 
Pm:de r at a r; a gr eed p rice of • 62~¢ per pound and Emanuel was to b e come 
resp onsib le to and p ay se..id Kenne dy that a mount of the aforesaid $100 
t ha t I b orrm·1ed from h im ; ar!d e.fte rwards ,, I borrmvcd $20 from WILLI AJ.1 
J ZFFJ\EYS for ,.;h ich. Emanuel .::.l s o b e came bound with me a s Secur ity and I 
al so p aid t o Emc:. nuc l $3 . 00 and also to J effrey,, $6 . oo, making $68. 25 o:; 
the fir s t n ote & $9 en the l atter , making i n the whole, $77 . 25 . I ·want 
t o E~anuel f or the pu rpose of making some arrangement to s ettle t he 
balance of the t v:o notes and Emanuel i nformed me that he had paid off 
the t1·10 not es and t hat he had given 12 percent thereon & that h e had 
lift-ed the n ot e f:ro::i Kennedy & l;oul d also lift the note from JL:ffres & 
1·:0u l d 1Je l i ver th r;::n to me a nd upo;i those statement s being made by Emat:'.lf!l 
- co:i:.fj_J i nc ~.n t n::: .-:-, [; t:r-l.ls t :;.ne to the cal~ul~ tion :. rr.o.de b~.r Ema.:rme J _. 

l 
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HIGGINBOTHAM 

rendered my note to him for the sum of $80, payable 12 months after 
date, which sum I was then informed by Emanuel was due from me to him 
for the two notes & the exerbitant interest he says he had paid on the 
note and also 12% which he charged me for the time he said he had paid 
said money, which he illedged was about 18 mcnths, which pei;cent was 
illegal and contre.ry to law. Now Emanuel has refused to give me the 
$20 note g1Yen to Jeffrey l·1hich was included in and formed part of the 
$80 note, but the sa~e now stands in full force against me. Also,, 
Emanuel is indebted to me in the sum of between $250 & $300 iri conse­
quence of a tract of land that I sold to him, all of which he ought long 
since to have paid & which he unjustly with holds. But now, so it is, 
that in the year 1822, Emanuel commenced Suit against me at the October 
Term of Court, and obtained Judgment thereon for the full amount and I 
was cc-mpeled to repleve the same for 2 years and the Bond will expire 
this fall. At that time, I employed James Rapier Esq, an Attorney at 
Law, who resided at Nonticelloj and at the time of the trial, Rapier 
had gone to Frankrort as a met:ber of the Legistature and had omitted 
to mark himself off to the Suit es Counsel for me and before I was in­
formed, the cause was rendered against me. I have recently applied to 
Emanuel and offered to settle all accounts and he refused and threatens 
to cause the Br.lou.,,_t of the repleven Bond so soon as it becor.ies due • 

. /-.J_/' .M; . -1'-;-
BOiID - Know all men that we, ANDREW l/l! /1. d' .. tJ.L,-..,r~/ :lf.~.-t' .. 1: ~~,,.,,.j'"C' -1_,, ·<vr, i. 
HIGGINBOTHAM & CHARLES HIGGINBOTHA1·1 ~ t' 
e.re bound unto Ei·~NUEL HIGGI1'n30THAH in the· SU:'!l of $300 •• this 8 Oct 1824-­
Whereas Andrew has obtained an Inju.~ction staying all further procedi~gs 
on a Replevy Bond of E'tlanuel against the said Andre1·1 & others, which 
Bond is for the surr~ of $92.09 and dated 1 Nov 1822. r_r, 

The deposition of JOHN L. STEFrlENS /){'_ ·)rf..·1!.<-~ f{if' 1,-'.,j:~; 
taken in Garre.rd Co. , K:{ on the "/' 1_.:, /? / :-:=:.-:;: --
9 Sept . 1826. in the Cap ti on of / _ _A':;:' .i jj· ~, 11 _ ''// /) Lt--·-·· -
.AugustL11 Smith ~efore me, James. G·, l.L .. L~-· ~ ,u;J:// 1 •.{~· . .f,f?.~-:n·:_; 
Henderson, Justice of the Peace: --;,_.,1 ,, 
"I heard Andrel·l H. a£}~ Emanuel H. whether or not ·/ /he uould credit his 
$80 Bond, which he contended, grew out of the Kenneo:; & Jeffers Eond 
with those articles lcl1ich he stated he had no credit, namely $3.00 paid 
to Emanuel to be converted to the use of said Jeffers in discharge of 
said note. Andreu also stated that at sundry times, he had put into the 
hands of Emanuel, a certain quantity of Gtu1 P0\·1der, something over 100 
weight, I think 117 with the deduction of 7 pm.Ll1ds for the sale of the 
same aDart of which he stated he had no credit. Emanuel said he need 
not keep so much a do about the powder for he did not deny having the 
pm·1der. Andrew said to Emanuel if he would allm·;r him those credits, he 
was ready for settlement - if not, he should be forced to talte it to 
Chancery against his will. I also recollect that Moses Higginboth~r.! 
car.ie to me and presented certain accounts which he desired I would ad­
just by calculation & which settlement in rny opinion included the Jeffers 
note, Kennedys Bond and the powder. /,{ , /7e;A·Y-· f.J_ __ 

J. ~ .. 7 ·/~jt?,p~ ... 4 ,4"... • "' I . I J'. J' f ·"' · · , '-" ~ ,,,,, , c;::;" . . !.· .... 
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The deposition of THCI:AS KENI-IBDY ESQ taken at his house in Garrard Co., 
Ky on 9 Sept 1826: "I recollect that ·r asked Amanuel if I was to loose 
my interest on the first note and he said that I must look to HIS BRO­
THER for it, that he was not authorised to pay it,. but whether or not­
he paid it, I can not positively say. The loss of time has been so 
great that I may be mistaken, but my L~pression is that I never received 
more than lat·lf'ull Interest of 6%. --:.LL ~/ ~ 

{ ~ '~."'"1'V d~ 
The deposition of JA1·3S G. :V.IOODS taken at the same time. -....:;.. ....,/ 
Questions by AndreN Higginbotham to James G. Woods: 
QUESTION: Do you recollect ·that at your house, I asked Amanuel Higgin­

botham to let JPJIBS HEHDERSOH, GEORGE DENNEY and yourself to make 
a calculation of all the systems .that should have been settled at 
the time I executed the note nou in controversy? . 

ANSUER: I recoliect that you mentioned that a note then in Suit called 
the Jeffrey note for about $20, you said t-:a::; settled in the Bond 
you had executed to Ar.-ianuel end also mentioned some powder and 
that you made the settlement yourself and if there was any mistake 

d •t II ...-: you ma e i • /~/: , ~ 

.. - ~:iY k. /At~ 
The deposition of SAI·'.iUEL HIGGINBOTH.PJ·~, take~ ti-· ... ,, o/ 
at the house of 'Ihcma;:; l~enncdy in Garrard Co., K~r - 9 Sept 1826 - c~ ..1. 
11Andre,·1 Hig~inbotham ta!E.nt I believe to Mr. Jen.'t{ins and returned the next 
morning to HIS FATIIEI\S and said he he.d made a Calculation himself and 
that there was .$80 a cor.iin~ and that he wrote the note himself and I 
Hitnessed the note. I do not k..'low what systems .that A11anuel and Andrew 
settled on " • / ' ' . .. ·· · 
Witncs::;ed by: {7 .. ...• ~ ~/:.~ __ .,., c/{I,··~· e'...,..v .. {~~ o->~ .,{:, u ..fJ"tJ~o 

/ (.1_,l} °/'•JIC• ~I .(',· . -; , I - t~ f - 'J 
v· · ·~ . ..,,. ~ I 

#(/_~j er/.·· zmz•~. ~ r;;, 
·· ·. ~-- / -" 27 Oct 1826 - Andrew Higginbotham 

states to the Court that WILLI~~ JEFFRES of INDIANA is a material wit­
ness for him by which he can prove some of the payments made to Mannuel 
Higginbotham. Jeffres lived in Jv'.adison County, Ky until a few months 
ago, and I w1mt to that County to take depositions and intended among 
other to have taken Jeffreys, but when I got there, I discovered he had 
removed to Indiana. I knm·; of no other witness by whom I can prove th~ 
same. I took the deposition of Augustus Smith of Garrard County and 
since that. time, he has recollected an importa.nt point which can help 
prove my Suit. My object is not to delay~ but that Justice may be done. 

Mr Mannuel Higgenbotham - Sir I shall attend at the house of Themas 
Kennedy Esq on the 9 day of Sept 1826 in order to take the depositions 
of EDMOND DANIEL & others to be read as evidence in a Suit in Wayne now 
pending whare I am Ccr.1J-laint a.nd yo":J. are Defendant - l\7hare you may at­
tend & cross exe~ine if you think proper - I am yours etc 

(the above was written and delivered by ~~9::) }k.q7~4o,.,....._ 
J. Denny) __ £?? ~ '6' 

//;/_p;·.,.Yl/J-~ I shall also attend -at James Hender-
/' ~ sons Esq in Garrard Co a..~d take the 

/ deposition o~ Moses Hig~enboth::un~ 

J 
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The deposition of AUGUSTO!i Sl•.iITH taken on 16 Sept 1826 at the house of' 
James Henderson Esq by Andrew Higginbotham: "I recollect in a conversa­
tion betwixt Andrew and Manuel, that Andrew stated that he had let him 
have 89 pounds at one time and 28 at another time of powder, but he only 
charged him with 110 pounds which Mannuel was to sell at 62~ per lb. 
QUESTION (by Andrew to Smith) 11Have you not for some time previous to 

this time of' this conversation, which you allowed and frorn that 
time on until now been Angry with me? 

ANSWER: In consequence of the improper conduct of you, I have kept my 
self at a distance for some considerable time, no doubt but what 
my passions have been raised at times.1 ~ ~ 

The deposition o:f ABRAi,; BAUGH taken at (';;/D-!:'-'f-'-"-<5 :Z:--ri_ ~-~ ,, 
~he house of James Henderson in Garrard Co: C/(at the same time) 
I sold my Gun Powder in the year 1810 :from 62~¢ to 75¢ per pound". 

'Ihe deposition of MOSES HIGGINBOTHAM 
taken at the same time and nlace as above: 
(Questioning by Andre1·1 HigBlnbotham) 

- (JI/. p : .-· 
CJ.T/ V'\O . .,. "'- g.J D--V~,4-, _ _:~ 

,:;J 

QUESTION: Do you not know that you were called upon to make the settle-
ment between me and your FATHER MANUEL HIGGINBOTHAM and if you 
were, state the ltems upon which the settlement was made? 

ANSWER: I dent recollect that I was called on or not. I recollect that 
when I earn home in the evening that they were on a settlement and 
I merely took up the pen and subtracted the sums which they were 
sitting upon and Andrew (you) said that I had done it wrong and 
then I threw the pen dmm and would not ho.ve anything more to do 
with it. 

QUESTION: Did your Father then Jump up and went out of the house and 
said neither of us had done it right? 

ANSWER: I dont recollect whether he did or not. 
QUESTION: Do you recollect that your Father had anything excepting the 

note to GEN' L KEifrIBDY and the JEFFERS note against me at that time , 
and in that settlement? 

ANSWER: I dont knm1 what you setted upon not particul_arly at th$/ime. ;!/: ./11.:..'l ~ 
DECREE: That the Defendant, ,;_-;,,~..1 .:f:. ~- 71c;V1' ~ 
EMANUEL HIGGINBOTHlJ·~ recover agt. (_,.. , .. : ...-/ U1"f';"~ 
the Ccmpleint, ANDREH HIGGINBOTHAM, _ -If-.. /,/,-;f_ ___ ... ~---·-·--· 
$8.oo, being 10% per antum damages on C>-: 
the amount and that the Complainants bill is hereby dismissed and finally 
that the Defendant recover agt. the Compt. his costs in this Suit to be 
taxed by the clerk and for which he may have Execution •••• 

=============== 
SAMtJEL BLACK who died in 1812 in Garrard Co., Ky, left his estate to his 
half-brothers, Andre1·1, Emanuel, James, Joseph and Samuel Higginbottom. 
Black also mentions several nephews in his Will and most l~ere named 
Samuel Higginbotham,, but of sons of different r.ien. One nephe1·1 was 
Sa~uel Turpin, son of a half-sister. 



HIGGIIIDOTnAM 

JEREMIAH DENNEY complains of A!IDREW HIGGINBOTHAM, 16 July 1825 in a 
Plea of Trespass - . 

Jeremiah Denney states that on the lst day of April 1825 in Wayne 
County, a certain JOHN MOUNCE by his Deed, duly executed, did lease, 
demise, & to farm let to me, a tract of land containing 50 acres, lying 
on the South Fork of the Cumberland River, including a place called 
Corms Salt Well and being the same tract patented to the said John Mouncl 
to have & to hold the said land and appertenances for and during the 
term of 50 years to commence on the 1st day of April 1825 and to be com­
plete and ended by virtue of which lease, on the same day and year, I 
did enter upon the said tract and poss·essed and enjoyed the same until 
the 10th of April 1825, on 1·1hich day Andrew Higginbotham, with force & 
arms and clubs, did enter upon and drive out and expell me from the 
land and Higginbotham still holds and keeps me out against the peace 
and dignity of the Commonwealth, by occasi9n of which several injuries 
I hath sustained damages to the amount of $10,000 and therefore sue. 

Mt·. Andrew Higginbotham - Sjr_, You· will perceive from the foregoing 
declarationJ that I am sued as a casual ejector of a tract of land of 
which you are in possession and as I claim no right or title to the land, 
and have no defense to the action, I do advise you to appear before the • 
Circuit Court on the first da.y of the next •July Term and cause yourself 
to be made Defendant to the action, otherwise I will make default and 
judgement will be rendered agaLllst me and you will be turned out of 
possession. 

JOE11.J MOUNCE 

July 23, 1825 - To the clerk of Wayne Circuit Court - Sir, I understand 
there is an Ejectment in your Court in my name against Mr. Andrew Hig­
ginbotham. The Suit has been brought without my knm·;ledge or consent. 
You will therefore dismiss the same immediately. 
Test: ~ C}.L~-;-,_, l/ 0 Jw,,. -')i1""".vrr C?E.) 

p .. ~ 17 .1.-r- u· 
(; ~ ~-<- £-o-< /Ir.A<) 

Sheriff of Pulaski Co.:1 K:y - you are hereby commanded to Summon JAMES 
HARGROVE to appear in Wayne Circuit Court and speak in behalf of Andrew 
Higginbotham in Suit nmr pending whereas John Mounce is Plaintiff and 
Higginbotham is Defendant, this 26 June 1827. From the Sheriff of Pul­
aski Co: The within James Hargrove has not been found within the limits 
of my Bailiwick, 21 July 1827. 

The Deposition of WILLIAM USSERY taken from Jackson County, Alabama on 
10 August 1826, to state the truth in a matter of controversey in the 
Hayne Circuit Court between John Mounce and Andrew Higginbotham: 
"In the year 1808_, I lived at the Mouth of Rock Creek and in the year 
1814, I lived on the oppoGitc side of the Big South Fork in Pulaski Co, 
Ky against the Mouth of Rock Creelt and owned the improvement including 

t 
I 
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Both sides of the River and made rny Entry in order to take both sides 
of the Big South Fork, including the Mouth of Rock Creek - Also I made 
my Entry to begin at a large White Oak about 70 or Bo yards from the 
River and not more than 30 or 40 yards from the lower corner of the 
upper line of' fence on the bench of the pasture lot - also I tmuld not 
be certain wheather I cut "w.u. 11 the first two letters of my name on 
the White Oak, but if I did not cut the two letters, my intention was 
to of done it. ,..... ~ 

Pulaski Co., Ky - Julv Term 1814 - //;/{~~ ~*- / 
Certificate No. 13 - 'i•en the motion of 1·1illiar.i Ussery who // // 
made satisfactory proof to this court by two reputable an ~i~i erest 
witnesnes, agreeably to an Act of the General Assembley t/of K tucky, 
approved 31 January 1810 ~or the Approbriation of the lands acquired by 
the Treaty of Tellico, 'Iherefore It is ordered by the Court that a 
Certificate issue to the said Ussery for 150 acres of land lying in the 
Section of the Corr.unom·1eal th acquired by the Treaty, byvirtue of his hav­
ing settled on the same and resided thereon 6 months and located as 
follows: William Ussery enters 150 acres of land in the Tellico Pur­
chase on the Bifi South Forlt of Cumberland River, beginning on a White 
Oak maked thus W. U. ti, thence ru..1111ing Eastwardly, thence Westwe.rdly, 
etc, includi~his i!!lprovement." o;t-=--:. -

( 

On the 15 May 1826, I preceded 
to Survey & lay off to the dir­
ection of Jeremiah Denney, the 
Plaintiff - John Mounces 50 acre 
Survey by Patent, marked 1.2.3. 
4.5.6.7.8.9.; also laid do~m 
Andrew Higginbothams 150 acre 
Survey by Protraction & by Pat­
ent and marked with letters, 
A.B.C.D.E., beginning on the 
East side of the Big Southfork -
John Mountes survey containc 
50 acres; Higginbothams survey 
contains 69 acres, signed Thomas 
Bates, D.-S: for James Jones, 
Surveyor of Wayne County. 

I 
I 

~ 
oJ 

. I 
On the 9 Oct 1826, I preceded to 
Survey to the directions of And­
rew Higginbotham whose 150 acre 
Survey is marked B.C.D.A., begin­
ning on the East side of the Big 
Southf ork below an improvement 

"Bu at letter ; also laid down 
Joh.ri Mou.l'lts 50 acre Survey by 
protraction & by Pattent and 
marked corners 1.2.3.4.5.6.7.9. 
beginning on the North side of 
Rock Creek at No. l; Higginbotham 
Survey contains 16% acres; Mounts 
Survey contains 50 acres. 

o/'/.~....4 P'.1'a <'<t ~~<. 
r. _rf ~A/\ ///,t ,-;) ~ . ,_,f o-, '-'··-...; 0~-r_.,\,..r_ ·- /-' 
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MOSES HIGGINBOTHAM & POLLY GODDARD HIGGINBOTHAJ.;, His wife vs JESSE AL­
CORN & SINA .JONES ALLCORN, his wife -
"case of ·slander" - Be it remembered that upon the Trial of this cause, 
the Plaintiffs, F..igginbotham introduced POLLY LORTON a witness for the 
Higginbotham' s, l·1ho swore she was at the Defendant Allcorn' s house in 
the fall of 1830 or 31 and heard Allcorn's wife in a conversation 1~ith 
her, Polly Lorton and the :family say that they,, meaning SALLY R. THOMAS, 
CATHAP.INE ALCORN & PRESTON T. ALCORN, or some of them, peeped through 
the cracks of Higginbothan1 1 s house and saw BERRY THOMPSON alone with 
Polly Higginbotham and at another time in the Spring of 1831,, the Plain­
tiff's wife was not content with that but she went to the barn with 
Thompson after night and stayed there for some time. Polly Lorton also 
states that POLLY SER.AT lived at Higginbotham's house while Moses was 
gone away with a Drove of Hogs and that during that time, Polly Higgin­
bothmn kept a dog tied day and night, which dog was sharp. EPHRAII-1 
BUNYARD swore he was at the house of Alcorns and heard Alcorn 1 s wife, 
Sina say her t'~o daughters and LUCINDA Mccown went to the house of Moses 
Higginbotham in the night and saw Berry Thompson in the house again with 
Polly Higginbotham, alone. 'Ihis conversation took place in the presents 
of CATHARINE ALCORN & the rest o:f the family and his son JAMES, (meaning 
Eunyardts son James). Bunyard also stated he had bought a farm from 
the Defendants wife (Sina Alcorn} and that it was a good place to raise 
Geese. Sina said it was a good place also tb loose the~ for her geese 
often got with the Plaintiffs (Polly Higginbothari's) who lived on the 
Creek below & that she could not get all her geese. Bunyard· asked l·1hy 
she did not mark the:;i and she answei-·ed she did and that Polly Higgin­
botham marked with the same mark of cutting off one toe of the Geese. 
I (Bunyard) then observed to Sina Alcorn that she could change her marl<. 
by cutting some of the head feathers, but Sina said that Polly could do 
likewise and that Moses Higginbotharn's wife, Polly took her geese and 
claimed them and would not let her have them. The Plaintiff_, Moses,, here 
blased his evidence and the Deft. Alcorn then introduced SALLY R. THOI-11\S 
who suore that herself and CATHARINE ALCORN & LUCINDA McGGWN was corr.ing 
tm-m.rds the Plaintiff Higginbotham 1 s house in the night with a light & 
that when they came within a few hW1dred y~rds of the house, Sally heard 
hollering some distance on the opposite side of the house and as they 
came nearer to the house, she heard loud talk in the house and thought 
her brother PRES'l'ON ALCORN was there. She or one of the company put out 
the light and advanced nearer to the house and she heard her brother 
say 11Rise up Berry & Polly". They stopped a short time e.t-or near the 
:yard fence and there concluded to take her brother away and I (Sally 
'Ihomas) wer.t up to the door and peeped through the crack and saw my 
brother, & FOLLY SERJ~T & POLLY HIGGINBOTHAM sitting dol'm together. Polly 
Serat was in the middle and rnv brother had his arm around Serat and his 
other hand on Polly's leg and" Polly made no resistance, but kindly said 
"O'n PreBton". Berry Thcmpson was also in the house. I then returned 
to my company nnd then we all went near the door and one of them coughed 
in order to let them in the house, know that we were there. I heard 
Preston say there was Caty and he opened the door. They all approeched 
the door when Pre~to!"l said "Girls you have caught me at last". Polly 
Higginbotham appea:-ed much alarmed and confused. Thompson & Preston 
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invited us to drink some whiskey out of a Jug that they had carried 
with them. We refused and one of her company poured it out. There we.s 
but a very small quanity in the Jug when offered to them. Sally also 
said that her brother & 'lbcmpson & Folly Serat and the Plaintiff's wife, 
Polly Higginbotham appeared near half drtml~ and that OLD K.'RS. JCTDD was 
lying in the bed and from the noise she made and her other conduct, 
l·1e thought her also drunk. We tool~ my brother off and left Thompson 
there with Polly Serat and Polly Higginbotha1:1 and after we got home, 
my brother, much intoxicated, declared he would go back and in defence 
of my self and others left heme. All of this was at the time that 
Moses Higginbotham ·was gone from this country with a D:rove of Hogs. 
Sally also proved her brother frequented the house of the Plaintiff 
often and that she often remonstrated against his going there. She 
also stated that no such conversation·took place as stated by Bunyard. 

Catharine Alcorn proved the sar.:e exce:r:·t what Sally sa1·: wh.:le peeping 
through the crack of the house. 

PETER TROXALL,, a \·Ti tness for the Defendant Allcorn, sNore that at a 
certain time while l·loses was gone with the drove of Hogs, that he,, Peter, 
and his wife and DAVID TROXALL went to the house of Moses Higginbotha;~. 
Polly Ser at was there, a.ls 0 REBECCA SEhAT and OU> J.lr.S KIDD' hi G 

l!OTHER-IN-LAW. 'Ihe old woman had got a fall from a horse and badly 
hurt, so much so, that she was thought dangerous and so much so tbat it 
was thought necessary for him end his wife.and David to stay ell night. 
When that was concluded on, that so:ne tir1e before night, DULTOI'J LO\TEALL 
and a 1,ffi ROBERTS came there. A little after sun down, David, Polly 
Serat and Loveall went out and brougJ1t in cor.ie l10od. I then sa\·l Polly 
Serat and Loveall whiGperint; together and a little before dark, Loveall 
and Roberts went a'\::ay. Soon e.fter they were gone,, the Plaintiff's Hif e 
said to Polly Serat that the Gap was down and she and Folly must r;o and 
put it up. Some short time after that, Polly Serat observed l·1e had 
liked to have forgot to put up the Gap. 'Ihe~:, that is Polly Higginboth­
am and Polly Serat, 1·.rent off as the~r said, to put up the Gap. They 
were gone in my opinion, 1~}, hours and ·returned complaininc, of being cold 
and said to en.ch other,, that there was three gaps down and it tool-: then: 
along time to put them up. Peter Troxell further proved that the lot 
l'lherc the calf was and where they said the gap was dmm, was around the 
house and did not contain more than one acre; he also stated his hor[;e 
was in said lot and he had exemfr1ed the fence and saw no gap dmm. Peter 
elso said, while going rou..r.id the fence he sa\".r two men there \·;hich he 
thought was Loveall & Roberts; he also proved t,hat Polly Serat live:d at 
the Plaintiff 1·1oses HigGinbothen' s house and HUG e woman 9f the ~ost 
Ease Character in the Cotmty and that wc.n lmown too about Polly HiGgin­
botha::-i to be such and that she in her husband, Moses Higginbothnr.:' 3 
absence, to keep woman of bad far:ie about her house. 

David Troxell proved in substance, the same that Peter Troxwell did. 
Mrs Troxwell substantially the same ••• 
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HIGGINBOTIIAl·i 

The deposition taken 3 October 1831, being the first Monday of October,, 
at the House of John Alcorn in the Tm:n of EATON, PREBLE COUl!TY, OHIO, 
the deposition of ~INLEY P. -·ALCORN was taken - 111 was well acquainted 
with Moses and Polly Higginbothan::,, being raised from a child riear to 
them where I resided on Sinking Creek in Wayne, during the years 1828 
and 1829 and was during that period, well acquainted with said Polly, 
whose l·lAIDEH NAME WAS POLLY GODDAP.D, THE DAUGHTER OF JOHN GODDARD of 
of Wayne County. Her character during the above period was bad for 
chastity. She was generaly suspected among the young people to be a 
't·10man of base conduct. While her husband_, l"ioses Higginbotham was away 
with a drove of Hogs with JAl·lES & JESSE DODSON_, several men, some of 
them married, frequently resorting Higginbotham's house during his 
absence and while his wife was at home. I have seen Berry Tnompson 
and several others, married and sinr;le at Polly's in the night time. 
Cne particular time while MoGes was gone, about an hour after dark, I 
came to the Higginbotham's house and I heard a man in the house. I 
looked in and sa1·1 a man setting 1dth Polly. Hhen I came in, the man 
got· up and walked into another room. I could not tell Hho the man was, 
beings there was no light in the ro0n1, but only a candle and nothing 
but fire light. Berry Thor:ipson was in company with me and we had with 
us a Jue: of Whiskey. 'Ihc l·1hiskey was handed by 'Ihompson to Polly, who 
drank out of it and an Old Lad:f v:ho was in the house, also drank out 
of it. I rerna ined at the house about an hour and left Thompson there 
in;about an hour, I returned to the house and heard a mans voice in the 
house distinctly, but do not knm: who it was as I did not go in, but 
went home. Before, l1hile I was in the house, Catharine Alcorn, Sarah R. 
Alcorn and Lucinda l·jcCoun came in about an hour after I had arrived. 
Shortly before the gi~ls came in, I called out several times fol" Berry 
and Polly to get up out of bed_, as I did not think it was right for a 
man to be in bed with another mans wife. I have seen Polly's child tied 
to the bed post in cold weather at night, while Polly was out. I have 
seen other men hugging Polljr Higginbotham since her marriage to iv.Loses, 
and puttine their arms around her, to which she made no resistance. 
I '·:as frequently at Polly' G house, while her husband was away and know 
that ELIZABETH KIDD was often gone frcm the house of Higginbotham, some­
times she was during all night gone. 'Ihe reputation of Polly and a girl 
call Polly Serat, otherwiGd called POLLY NIGHT and Beclcy Serat, other­
l'Tise called BECKY WILLIAl·m, 't·1ho resorted to said Polly Higginbothams 
house "~as extremely bad for Chastity, among all the people to whom they 

\"1ere Y.110,-m. Y (}e7""' 1~31 /. )f: 4-;c//_.B'~ 
After the Defendant · · ij~ -~ el· ---C 
had introduced the foregoing witnesses, th~plaint~f then introduced 
Loveall who s1·10re that him and Hobert wsnt to Hir,ginbotham' s, the plain­
tiff' r; house about the time stated by the Defendants witnesses and that 
they went a1·my about dark and stopped at the llog Pen; that Roberts went 
of some short distance and Polly Serat met hir.i at the ;1og pen and that 
she had been in the habit of meetinc him out and further stntes that he 
did not see the Plaintiff 1 s '\dfe, Polly Higginbotham after they left the 
house and tho. t he never sa1.-1 any mp roper conduct in her and believed her 
to be of good character. 
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HIGGINBOTHAl·~ 

The individual that Sally R. Thomas said was Berry Thompson in the house 
alone after dark with said Polly Higginbotha~, :·1as then introduced, 
meaning Berry Thompson ~.,ho swore that he '\•:as not on the bed ·with Polly, 
nor did he knot·1 any harrr .. of her and that he did not hollar for her and 
that he did not know, nor did he ever see an~,r inproper conduct on the 
part of Polly Higginbotham and believed her to be a woman of good 
character and that his visits to Higginbotha~'s house was to see Polly 
Seratt and that he had not been there for that purpose more than twice. 
Berry positively contradicted the statement made by Sally R. Thomas as 
he posotively did not have hls hand on Polly's leg. 

Mrs. Elizabeth Kidd was then introduced who swore she lived at the 
Higginbotha'n 1 s and was sick and in bed and that Polly was not out of 
the house the time spoken of by the Troxwel1 1 s and that Polly was kind 
and attentive to her and that she believed that if Polly had been out 
of the house a quarter of an 11our at the ti!!le spoken of by Tro:i~··well,, 
that she would have knm-m and l"'ecollected it. 

Lucinda McCmm s1·1o:re she ,.las with l·!rs. Thomas and Catharine Alcorn at. 
the time they state and hea1"d loud talk in the house and Mrs. Thomas 
told her she saN Preston flllcorn in with Polly and that she Gaw nothine 
improper in Polly or 'Ihompson and she did not discover the embaressnent 
of Polly Higginbotham that was spol':en of by the other witness, Sally R. 
Thomas and Catherine illcorn. 

Miss CORDER swore she asked l'·~r s. Thomas if she knew any harm of Plain-· 
tiff's wife and she said no; no person was present when thin conversa­
tion toolt place and that this conver::mtion took place sometime after 
said Sally Thomas naid she had been at the plaintiffs house after dark. 

'111ere were many witneGsen introduced on the pc.rt of the Higrinbothrun 1 s 
'"ho proved that Polly had been a woman of good character a.."'"ld ·was ~,ret as 
far as they Y..ne\·:; thouc;h many of them kneu Polly Serat lived '·1ith her 
but did not conceve that injured her cha:r·acter and standing althcuc;h 
Pol Serat was a wor:ia.n of infumcus character. It was also proved by 
many resputable \·1i tnesses that l·.Irs Thcr.aas, Catharine Alcorn l'1ere persons 
of good character as also the Troxwells. It was also pl'·oven bJr 2 wit­
nesseD that the witness, Findley P. Alcorn stated to them before he left 
Kentucky, that he kne1·r no harm of Polly Higginbotham and that his visits 
to their house was to see Polly Seratt. It m!s proved by n;a.ny l1itnesses 
who had knrn·m Polly Hiccinbo-:ham from the time she uas a Er.iall girl and 
that she was a '·mman of good character and that POLLY LORTQ!; and MRS. 
ICTDD i.·1as of good character and that Findle~1 P. Allcorn, Catherine All­
corn and Sally R. 'IHCi~PSOH,, UAS CHILDEEN OF THE DEFE:l·IDANT, ALCORN and 
that Findley P. Allcorn was a man of bad moral character. 

'Ihe foregoing statements contained herein, are the evidence given on 
the Trial - and the DECr~3 of the Court based on the evidence, the Jury 
found for the Plaintiff, Higginboth&~~. 'Ihe Defts., Jesse and Sina All­
corn moved the Court for a new Trial because they say that Polly Higgin­
botham is Guilty of the Charges berore stated. 

---------------------------
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·.2 . . . 1 • • ~ . · . : •• : · · • ~-.:. : ... ···~· ·t : ... - ,;. : - ~ · .. · ... 

. • ] · ·'·•· . ·:-· »· '· · .· -~.! ·~ 'i,• ,. ,-7 
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LINEAGE 
I, ____ All 1 no Tbo111J2&an....!.a!U.Ar..~ ... ~---·-··-·---being of the age of eighteen 

years and upwards, hereby apply for membership in the Society by right of lineal 
descent in t.he ~ollowin__ tfi~_ , JUWtl . .:~h~thaa ....... -. · &\f .-.L. 
who was born 1n ....... 1:11~2~cw£t;1*: .. -0ft the._ ... _day of___ 17WJi 
and died in ........ - •• ..!llu;r.U.osm~Jko~ia. ..•. on the-........ "..day z,f_/_-J __ , 1.lBQ!._ 

·His place of residence d~g ~e·R~v~lutio~ w_8]1-~~.:_7)0-~------·-

1. '* ~cBl;~E~;::;:~:~~::t~,~ of 

.... t1..!-.~.ll .. ~t~!J..l.Y:r~ .. Xh9.?.'.r.l!.~ •.•••••.• bom on.-~-'=-~lt'.~.L .... at .... _11~ •. ..<J.~2r~t~-------. __ 

died at_··················----·-········-·······~--~on-. ··-··-······--and his (first or ) wife 
......... ~r.n.~.U! .. ~-~.?.!B?.~.U. -····--····born" on .... hi!::l~-~Q .... at .............. 1-lh .. ~.u!r~t~-------
died at_ll.L..~P.r..d.A~---·--.-:on-A:.S.::l9.5.4-_married on .... 12-s-1se2 

2. The said. ___ ....c..oxn~~~btlL.... __________ ~----·--··-·-··--· was the child of 
.••. J.o~a. • ..CAll~A~--~.!-Hl~.k>,.U ..... L.born on .. ...ll::~:-.l.,,.21 .... aL .. UPt. ..... ~.ru:~u. __________ _ 

died at _____ n~ ... -~.oui.e...-7-----~~----0n .. ..i..-:24:-.l.SOS ••• ~~nd ~is (Mst-&P ~.if' ) wife 
.. J..e.ru.ahL . .Ri~dnh.ct..hul. .... :. •.• _· •. born_ O~---B.-:Z4.~.l!29._aL.-.ll.L.-~~7---
died at ...... .IlA-.G.e~r.rl.a.. ... ----r-,;_on-5."!~Q::l.915 .... married on .... l2.-:L-:l.8.4S __ _ 

... 3. The said_' ______ .le.r.m~(i' nho+hem ........ ·--,;z.;--··-··was the child of 
j .ip_~_j)& tt.~....h1 t-t .. filt:dn~halq__bo~ __ o~_f.72..~.::1J.at,_JF1k?Crtv Ger:' a 

·died at_E.lhiu:t...C.Ow:U;J .... ~L .... ..on...:...~-~ 2(4 ) wife 
"'~ Q!\4t-~~ '. : ;: .... 

• ., 1, _ . ~ ~ ~- ;- • ~. O~-·-···-··-·-·-:-a~..:.El.lus:i:~~~· 
~.,~ . ~~J_--:--:~rri~ on_-2 .taaf"' 

,j 4. The said. ___ Jolm_ att•~-lll;;,;~- ·C:. • ." 'U. ~· *° 
~.amu.c.LBi,viuAA~,-. -----;r-bom o~l1..4.5~.:_~.:.~-~~§=~~,~~ 

died at.~~ co"'untv, 3•$!F.s1!.._on~..,.- . · and his (first or ) wife 
....... J~!'.! .. ~f. tt~~---·-·.--bom on. _______________ at.·--·-·--·---Q);t;--Jrtf ~-
died at ____________ _:_· _________ on_ ______ __married on ---

6. The said--~~~~k.:..·.-..:...~:.. .. ...:~ was the child of j 
.. ~r.9n.JU.u.ln..~P.i:.tL~---..,.---born on .•. l7li.. ________ at._lr.dud._ _________ . _ g 

died at .. _!mb.w:..~Ll.2YD.il: .Virr;ini.L .. on..J.7.l\~------·---and his (first or ) wife 1 
~- ----~~l.A.cA. • ..:lr.D~ne. ______________ born · on ....... ·-······------at ..... .;.!mhur~.COUAt!t--V.a..-- I 

· died ·at _______________________________ ........... on. ________________ married on .. -..1.!iP i 

6. The said·--·-------··-------·--··-···-····--···-··-------·--·-----·was the child of i! 
··-.··----·-------------···-----born ·on ______________ at ________________ _ 
died aL.·-··-------------··-···-----·--.---on __________________ and his (first or ) wife 

... ·--·-----·····-·---:-----·-··-·-·-····born on ....... ___________ at.·---···--·-··---·-----·---
died at .. _____________ --·······-····-----·on_ ............. - .... married on ... ·--···--·-·-·-

7. The said·--··--·-··---- ·····-'--··---·--····-·······-····-·---·-·······--·-·-·····was the child of 
·----·-----···--·····--······-················born on .............. ·-····--at,----···----------····-----

died at-----·--··-·-·-----·····--·····-······-~---on.,.-.. ···------and his (first or ) wife 
·····-----·--·----·-···············-·---born on ______________ at ___________ _ 

died at ....•........... ····---·-· . ·---···-·------On·-· ................... married on------------·······-----·· 
8. The said. ___________ . ---·------·-·------·was t:he child of 

· bo:tn on . .:.... __ . ____ at_. 

died at __ . · ---~-·-----------~--· ___ on ______ and his (first or ) wife 
·-------·-·-·..: .................... ~.--born on____ a..._ ____ _ 
died at __ . --· on ... _____ m~arrled on _____ _ 

9. The said _______________ . ___ _ was the child of 
-------- bOrn o._n _____ ,.at __________ _ 

died aL ________ . _, _____ on_. and his (first or ) wife 
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REFERENCES FOR LINEAGE 
{f'nota ror UM al d_,.Dt .,.. wtU.. admlDlstnUou. 49.c! .. cbvQ. Blll1' aana 

. U4 pau.SOQ l"9COl'da: tom.,._.., bf.Hori-. suealort-. ol4 a....;iapen. 9te.) 

Give1'elow a referenee to the authority for EACH etat.ement of Birth, Mar­
riage• and Death.· If from published records, give names ot books and page num­
bers.. If from unpublisbecl records, applicant must file certified or attea~pi,.t 
of same. . . ' ~ ·~· .•. ,, . . .· . . . ·- •,... . . I \,f ~ .. ., 
P ~ B '-'·"~- ,~· @~~-~,,-_ ~d-!>'-'-N·· .. •o'rl' rnan .. W~.AM. .. ..11.~~-,:----·----~----U .... -vet,·- - ~------

~~~~:=:::=::::::::=z -=::::=:==::::~::~:~::::::==::::=::::=:::~~~~=~~= 
4 cti CeR ... _y.:lA-L-~~: .. G... ........................ ----···--------------_:_ ___ _ 
········----·············-·-----·-··--··-·····-··--·············---------------------
5th Gen.--~A. .. ~.~~inb.o~~-•u---~-..Lt.._.i..n..C.olnn1 • l Se.r..v1 ee 1 t1 .l7.S.9..-

·····-····: ....... ,~r.u.c2.~.t-U.JaJ>.t .. '1:D .. a.L.A:uhur.a..~.te&-.. Ya_.,;._Jlili.t.ia--:llis .. ¥.&l1e, 

6th Gen ... lS>~~.t:.~st..!-.'l--t-~3 •• m.Uu.Ao.:t.h .. QJ: .. tlbnt.c.n. •.. ~ ..... ....ha.a.l>.u~b.d...b~ 

........••••..... ,t. he .• .IAl ~1L.a.f • ..t..ha.. • ..!.ma.r.i.c.A.n..Re. v.oluJ:i.oD.. ••• ~th a.r_iJU:Ql'JIAti.m>-__ 
' 

7th Ge}lLina .. u.ka..L .!'~.om..Aibl~c~i:U-.0£.~usM. • .Cca.~y-----··---·--
~dQ.l~~--~--1)-~_W.~k~,_,..a_wf cJL \--. 
8th G•R~J-,.:na_:.___fjL\t:J .. ~:.9..!..l, .. ~~~=. ~d.llL~~ 

" ··---···-·····:r.~ -~.(.9-l)1) I!!>_' ···-~I . -i ftth Gen -~~-t>=rJ)~A. ••• 11bS=.l.l~.o:.:~ ~ 3.._.,_,.._.. __ _ 

.. ---·-------------····-----------------.-.--·----------
~ 

~ . ~ _< Qi,ve, if possibl~! th~~U~~g data:: My Reyolutionary ancestor was married 

; ( 1 )· to---~-~~---·---Bt ---·- ---------·-_, l __ _ 
~ (2) to_J)_ _______________ . ___ at._____________ _, 1 __ 

1 (3) to______ _ _____ at .. ·------------- l-
a 
f • a 

a 
0 

CHILDREN OF REVOLUTIONARY ANCESTOR 

Na,mes · Dates of Birth 
.a • I :.i,.i..fl ... .s11n-m~\..1'L.. .· }-----·-----
~ -····-··-----1il\~1ti.. &.r> nut"")·-·-··-·-----
,;· ' 

c: ·-··-------·-····-

----------·----' 

--------·---- . 

····-----·········------

. ···-··-···········-····---

·. I was born on___!:-l.B.::ll.9j _______ at .. _ _lla.:Jle,.u0Lirc~1..., • .._ _______ _ 

married on .. .l2.:Zl.:l.S3l ... ___ .at_ __ ~ClJLt114_..a.__ ___ ·by _!>r..L-¥Q.~LhL ___ _ 

to _ ........ JJau.rsLJ.o..a.:zma....F.Mbr _______________ .. who was born on__i;-a-1.89l.----··-·· 

•lf&J'rlap lD 9'f'lll7' ·n..tanc. la thl1 paper ma&A• Jecal u.d lawful marrtap. 
· ~ti or maniap :may be aubftttat.ed for dua of blrt!l ud deatb ,.....,.. ndl 4ai. pr°"9 
lb• 901dler to Ila- tbea U'l'1JI& dvtq the Rttol13ttoa ud of a autt&ble ap ror N7"Ytoe.. 
(Note: Raolut:Smt ·adopted br the tw•Dt7·fomtb ConttDciaJ Conrnu: 
I>eaceDd&Du ot pr:zQnanio11a ZD&1Ti&n .,.. Dal taccept&ble u mamben of th1a 8ocJet7,) 

. . ... "\,."·""'···· .. , ............... ~···· 
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"Any woman ia eligible. for memt>eram~ w t..ae .-,-'~•vL.4i ...,'-"-• ..:. .. / .;,;. ~ ............. ~u-~~J ..:. 
the American Revdlution who 11 not IP.SS than eighteen years of age. and who la deacended 
from a man or woman who, with anfaiHng loyalty to tha cause of American Independence. 
served u a sailor, or aa a soldier ot fSivil oflleer ln oae of tho several Colo~lea or Statu. or lD 
t.he United Calonlea or States. or aa a recoPhed patriot, or rendered material aid tbueto: 
provided the applicant ta personally acceptable to tile Society."·· (Conatitutlon, Article ID. 
Section 1.) · - ·1 

• 

.. . ANCESTOR'S SERvICES 
. , My ancestor's services in aRSisting in the estabUshrr1ent of Am&rican Indew 

pendence during the War of ~he Revolution were as folio!~ 

'- . . J ¥ / 
~a L~. in Colonial sor-Yico 1n 176~ aorvod 1n war aa Capta1D ot 

Amhurst Co.,. V1rt;inia llllit~a. 

It 

.! 
Returned ·..d. th dup.:icate paper, book~et on "Ancestry & Fam11J iJ 

Tree" 27 pages.. : ./ . ·/ : 

Th~ S3id: .............. S.uud. "-1-td.nbg.tho..il. ________________________ :_:_:_ ' 

~~~=-:-~:.~~~:'.~~~~:~~~~~~:~~~7;~e ~c~ i 
Give references ~y voli,une and page to the documentary or other authorities 1 

for-MILITARY RECORD: Wher8' referenc.e is made to unpubli8Md or inapc688ibl.4 J 
recorda of ser'rrice, the <Zpplicant must ·~ ·~ coyy . •. · ./ 
Vol ..... __ ........ -P·----- --i, .- ~ -f /f ,Y~/ ' 
v I. . . . .... - . "'' t .,, u I / 

0 ·- · ....... ··P·-···-·----·--··· I 1/ .f- ;i .:.:., . ·• _ ~ • .1.1 "t IO ~ 

. - / 
·~ .... ·. '· ... ~ - ~ ·-b \~l \.-:.'-'-. 

The following form of ackn.awledgment is required~ 
Applicant further says that t.he said ... S.RM.u.S.:.t.. .... .t\-l:ff.i.W.tl.c:T.tUClDt\----·-­

( name of ancestor from whom eligibility is derived) is the incestor mentioned in 
the foregoing application, and that the statements hereinbefore set forth are true 
to the best of her knowledge. and belief. 

The applicant also pledges allegiance to the United States of America and 
agrees·to support its Constitution. This applies .~nly .. to. ·~tizeruis of the United 
States of America. · · · . · • - ·· ' 
..... j ... (Signat.ureof Applieant) ... a.u; . ..,..,__.~~;tm .. J_.,._ 
" . ~ • . (Ftrst ..P&JD•) ~M·l~d1l"mef'. (Lut Kam•) 

· Subscribed and·s-Wt>~.to bef.ore:me at~----~ . ·· · . . ( =--<t.7:---,. (State)' •• • 

this.:::: ... :: .~.~~~~-:.:..:::.:: . .__:c..J!iiy of Ai>~"""'~ l -.J.. D. ,. "' 
[SEAL] ' . . . . . I . •• . - ___ ,h_._~ ·- -

. . ~ ~N 
1.0:.)ry Public, State or Flett a •'1• 

• . . M·, :omrnisaion ElCPitts Sept. 5. 1961· 
'101 .eta Dy .Amottc.n Surety Co. or N. 'f. 

·& 

.... 

ii 
·~---·------··- -~ C.#U> : w:rt;t . ~ ... _J •• ::a ...... ~w:rnrn&a:BE.13Cr:+#9Sf\9:1-S:. .-



. ,. 

• 

./ 

.Dear Mr. Bush, 
·, 

Sorry its taken so long to answer, 

my husband and me have been to New Orleans 

for the Holidays, thats where our daughter 

lives. 

Samuel Higginbotham comes from 

Aaron Higginbotham's line. My son in Law 

comes from Benjamin's Line, Brothers. 

John Higginbotham 1st. Generation 

Aaron & Benjamin are 2nd. Generation 

my son in Law 9 th. Generation 

I need the names of the 13 children 

of Ann & William Fortson. I have only one. 

Also any information on the Children. 

Thanking you 

Chula Vista,Cal.92010 
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